ANNUAL REPORT
2013-2014

“The Surveying & Spatial Sciences Institute (SSSI) is Australia's peak
body representing the interests of surveying and spatial science
professionals, combining the disciplines of land surveying, engineering
& mining surveying, cartography, hydrography, remote sensing and
spatial information science.”

Vision and Mission

OUR VISION
To provide a globally recognised forum for the surveying
and spatial sciences community that leads, promotes,
advocates and delivers excellence.

OUR MISSION
To develop professional excellence, provide a support
network and enrich the lives of our individual members,
in addition to progressing the surveying and spatial
professions in Australia and abroad.
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Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute

The Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute combines the disciplines of land, hydrographic, engineering and mining
surveying, photogrammetry, cartography, geodesy, remote sensing and spatial information science. The Institute’s
members are involved in communities of practice such as land administration, land development, natural resource
management, earth observation, emergency management, forestry, agriculture, defence, marine environment,
local government, health, education, tourism, transport and many more.
Surveyors and Spatial Scientists deal with policy, administration, collection, measurement, analysis, interpretation,
portrayal and dissemination of spatially-related land and sea information, together with associated planning,
design and management. They also acquire, integrate, manage, analyse, interpret, map or distribute information
about a location in space and time. They develop, design and provide related equipment, software and valueadded services; undertake applied research, knowledge management and technology development; and manage,
educate and train others.
The principal objects of the Institute are:













to empower the Members to strive for excellence in the application and practice of surveying and spatial
science for the benefit of the community;
to represent, support, provide for and promote the professional interests of Members that work in the
surveying and spatial industry in all its disciplines;
to provide a national and regional identity to enable the development of the surveying and spatial industry
as a whole;
to maintain and promote standards for Members and professional conduct of Members who work in the
surveying and spatial industry;
to encourage, promote and assist Members to:

pursue their professional commitments in an ethical, energetic and scientific manner;

maintain a high level of personal and professional esteem when interacting with the community,
clients, colleagues and allied professionals;

actively participate in the processes that shape society;

encourage, assist and to professionally develop new surveying and spatial science graduates;
to enhance the professional character and status of Members who practice in the surveying and spatial
sciences as worthy contributors to the community;
to promote honourable professional conduct and surveying and spatial science practice and to safeguard
the interests of the profession of surveying and spatial science generally;
to encourage the study of surveying and spatial sciences and to improve the general professional and
technical knowledge of surveyors and spatial scientists and persons intending to engage in the professions
of surveying or spatial science;
to promote and provide the awarding of prizes, scholarships, exhibitions, bursaries and funds for the
purposes of education in all branches of surveying and spatial science and;
to write, edit, print, publish, issue and circulate a periodic journal or journals, papers circulars and other
literary matter as is conducive to the other objects set out in the Constitution to facilitate the exchange of
ideas and knowledge between Members of the Institute and the community generally by lectures,
conferences and any other means and to maintain libraries and data bases of materials and publications
relevant to the spatial sciences.
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President’s Report

SSSI has become a mature Institute that is gaining increased recognition as the national peak body
representing professionals with interests in the surveying and the spatial sciences, and is providing an
increasing quality and range of services to members. This is based on the contributions of staff and the
outstanding volunteers who do an excellent job in developing events, CPD, certification programs and quality
publications. I salute all those people who have made a great difference to the functioning of SSSI over the
past year.

I am pleased to report that SSSI had another strong year
in 2013/14. I can state that SSSI has had an increasing
number of new members and the return of past
members. This is particularly due to the commitment by
the Board, Consultative Council, Regions and Commissions
to diversify member services and respond to members’
requirements for the advancement of their professional
development.
This past year was a very productive one across Australia
and New Zealand with SSSI hosting an array of high quality
conferences, an expanding quality certification program,
interesting regional events tailored for members and
workshops assisting our professionals in expanding their
skills. As well the Institute continues a strong relationship
through the Sustaining Partner Program.
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President’s Report
Some of the highlights over the past year include:








Conferences
o Successful Locate 14 event held in Canberra in April this year, including the celebrations of the
APSEA Awards Dinner held at Parliament House;
o Convened almost 250 Regional conferences, CPD Events and Networking in all regions in Australia;
o Signing of agreement with SIBA for the formation of Locate Conferences Pty Ltd for the
collaborative management of the future Locate Conferences involving the majority of surveying
and spatial organisations in Australia and New Zealand;
o Planning for Locate 15 to be held from 10-12 March 2015 in Brisbane has commenced and an
exciting and beneficial event is promised.
Technology
o Continuation of webinars;
o Upgrading of SSSI website;
o Introduction of a members only blog spot;
o Delivery of SSSI online events which not only includes live webinars, with further online
developments to include e-Learning videos.
Membership development
o Continual growth in new members and re-engagement with past members;
o Development of new marketing and membership packs;
o Continuation of graduate membership and free student memberships;
o Introduction of part-time students rates;
o Continuing growth in the Professional Certification Programs in four professional streams with
national and international recognition.
Governance
o Finalisation of the agreement with SIBA to cooperate on issues of common interest ;
o Agreement in the Consultative Council for a restructuring of the finances of the Institute that will
enable the Institute to operate as a truly national body thus providing greater opportunity for
development projects with national benefits;
o Agreement with SIBA to develop a joint venture for the maintenance and further development of
the marketing software ‘Destination Spatial’.

In my first year as President I have had the opportunity to engage with members around Australia. This has been a
rewarding experience and demonstrates to me the diversity and high quality of activities undertaken by
professionals within SSSI. My priority aims for this year were to develop a marketing plan for the surveying and
spatial sciences and encourage further support for the SSSI certifications. Both of these developments are on their
way, but are dependent on sources of future financial support from the Institute.
In closing, I believe the past 12 months has been a very good year for the Institute. This is thanks to our dedicated
volunteers and members, staff, a stable management team, and supportive Sustaining Partners. As a result there
has been positive growth in all sectors. The Board remains confident for the year ahead.

John Trinder
President SSSI
7
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CEO’s Report

2013-14 A VERY BIG YEAR
2013-14 has been both challenging and exciting for SSSI. It was a year in which we moved forward on some very
pivotal organisational and business developments such as the introduction of the E-CPD program, a revised
student and graduate membership system, the introduction of the concepts of a new financial model, a new
approach and structure to National Conferences and enhancements to member benefits by way of the Benefit
Collective.
The following pages of this Annual Report, reports on the progress made by all Regions, Commissions and Special
Interests groups of the Institute, over the course of the past 12 months and how the organisation and its people
went about our role of managing and promoting the institute on behalf of its membership in 2013-14. These
pages also talk about the work done on behalf of the industry across the country to deliver our national CPD
programs successfully to our members, while re-structuring the organisation to position SSSI for future growth
and even better service delivery.
RESPONDING TO OUR MEMBERS
Over the reporting period we sought the advice from
our members by way of a member survey, and we were
pleased that the feedback for communications and
general satisfaction was positive, the general feedback
about SSSI was that individuals are members as they
“want to stay in touch with fellow professionals”, “Have
access to the latest Industry Developments” and
“Ongoing professional development and certification
programs”.
We have focused our efforts on the responses that
indicated that we needed to improve member benefits.
We accepted this feedback enthusiastically, and set
about developing and implementing new standards of
customer service from the national and regional office
staff, new levels of engagement and collaboration with
our volunteer base and heightened activity in the area
of member satisfaction and services by way of a new
benefit scheme.
ACHIEVEMENTS
As a consequence of this work and the endeavours of
many people, both staff and volunteer, the
organisation was successful on a number of fronts.
Some of our achievements for the year included:


Continuing to build a coordinated, national
membership database resource that is
responsive and meets the needs of the
individual as well as the organisation;
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CEO’s Report









The implementation of a spatial newsfeed on our website;
Attracting new and experienced ROMs to join the staff team;
Strengthening our communications with members with a weekly newsletter;
Publication and distribution of Geomessage, Position Magazine and Journal of Spatial Sciences ;
Launch of the dynamic new Locate Conferences Australia Pty Ltd with SIBA;
Strengthening our relations with our National, Regional and Commission Sustaining partners;
Introduction of a new national merchandise;
Visits by the President and CEO to most Regions of Australia and New Zealand to engage with Regional
Management groups and members.

In developing our thoughts for the year ahead, we will continue to focus the Institute's resources on priority areas –
certification, continuing professional development, education, coordination of the profession, advocacy and community
engagement, connecting and empowering and growing membership. These identified areas will be progressed taking
into account both lessons learned and the emerging needs over the next twelve months.
The changing nature of spatial with its emerging occupations and technologies can create a very different environment
from what today’s workforce looks like and also how associations will service members in the future. It is certainly an
exciting time and a time for growth as we head into our sixth year of operation.
PARTNERS
I would like to recognise our Sustaining Partners who have shown a strong commitment to the Institute by the
relationships that have been built with us on a platform of trust and mutual understanding. My sincere thanks to ESRI for
being the National Titanium Sustaining partner and Event Partner for the 2013-14 financial year and acknowledge their
commitment to SSSI over a number of years. It is also fitting to thank the National, Regional and Commission partners
who have continued their commitment and give generously of time and resources.
THANK YOU
I would like to thank the two Presidents that I served under during the reporting period, Gary Maguire and John Trinder,
for their endless enthusiasm and encouragement and the members of the SSSI Board who have supported me
throughout an exciting and challenging year. The staff of SSSI have been energetic and tireless in addressing the many
developments we have initiated, the changes we have embraced and the programs and events we have managed on
behalf of the members. I thank each member of that staff team for trusting my leadership and carrying out their duties
with enthusiasm and commitment. Thank you also to the Consultative Council and the Chairs of the Regions and
Commissions who have ensured we have enjoyed both robust discussion and productive outcomes in our collaborations.
Most importantly, I thank the members of our Institute across the country for your commitment to the Institute and its
ongoing development. I commit SSSI to work for you in 2014-15 in a way that will allow you to see the many benefits that
accrue to you from having a strong and united national association at every level. SSSI has professional and spatial
significance within the Australian community and we have a tremendously rich and diverse organisation to which we all
belong. We will continue to grow and develop the organisation to ensure we remain at the forefront of the industry and
continue to be highly visible and aim to be successful in everything we do.

Roger Buckley
Chief Executive Officer
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Strategy 2015

Implementing Strategy 2015
Strategy 2015 clearly describes who we are, how we operate and how we are working towards providing a globally
recognised forum for the surveying and spatial sciences community that leads, promotes, advocates and delivers
excellence. The following six Strategic Priorities provide the framework for achieving our vision over the next three years.
These points are in no particular order of priority.

1. Certification
Provide rigorous certification programs in surveying and spatial disciplines that are nationally and
internationally recognised by employers and professionals and that demonstrates professionalism to the wider
community.

2. Continuing Professional Development (CPD)
Commitment to developing and providing a comprehensive CPD program, and ensure all members have the
opportunity to fulfil their CPD requirements.

3. Education
Champion training and further educational opportunities for members. Promote the surveying and spatial
sciences as an attractive career for young people.

4. Coordination of the Profession
Be widely recognised as the voice of surveying and spatial professionals through coordinated initiatives and
approaches.

5. Advocacy and Community Engagement
Provide quality and informed advice and positions from the disciplines of the surveying and spatial sciences
profession for the benefit of decision makers.

6. Connecting and Empowering
Provide an environment where members, partners, staff and stakeholders are empowered, connected,
supported, and operate in a professional and ethical matter.
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The Board 2013-14

John Trinder – President

1/7/13 – 30/6/14
John Trinder graduated a BSurv from the University of New South Wales (UNSW) in
Sydney Australia in 1963, and MSc from ITC in The Netherlands in 1965 and PhD from
UNSW in 1971. John has undertaken teaching and research at UNSW for more than
40 years, specialising in Photogrammetry and Remote Sensing, and has published
more than 170 scientific papers in journals and conference proceedings. He was
President of the International Society for Photogrammetry and Remote Sensing
(ISPRS) for the period 2000-2004 and is currently an Honorary Member of ISPRS.
John received the Spatial Sciences Institute of Australia - Eminent Persons Award in
2004 and was elected Honorary Fellow of UNSW in 2013. John has been involved
with SSSI since its formation, and has been on the Consultative Council as the
Remote Sensing and Photogrammetry Commission representative since 2011. John
has served on the SSSI Board since November 2011 and was elected President-Elect
in October 2012. John is currently SSSI President for the term 2013-2015.

Gary Maguire – Past President
1/7/13 – 14/4/14
Gary Maguire (GISP-AP) is the Manager of Business and Location Intelligence
Services at the Department for Communities and Social Inclusion. In 2008 he
was recognised as ‘South Australian Spatial Professional of the Year’ and in the
same year he and his team were recognised for ‘Innovation’ at the DFC Australia
Day Awards. In 2011 he was recognised by the South Australian spatial
community for his ‘Services to the Spatial Community’. Currently he is a Fellow
of the Leadership Institute of South Australia (Fellow FGLF), a Certified GIS
professional in Asia Pacific (GISP-AP) and a fellow of SSSI.

Jonathan Saxon – Treasurer

1/7/13 – 30/6/14
Jonathan Saxon is the Managing Director of Project Surveyors (formerly Clement
& Reid). Jonathan is a Registered Land Surveyor in NSW since 1993, and holds a
Bachelor of Surveying Degree from UNSW (1988). Jonathan also has a Masters
of Management Degree from Macquarie Graduate School of Management – a
world ranked Management School, and a part of Macquarie University, which he
obtained in 2001.
Jonathan has been primarily employed in the private sector as a Surveyor since
graduation, and has been managing his current business since 1995, as one of
three directors. In 2008 he became the last President of the Institution of
Surveyors Australia, and in 2009, was the first President of the Surveying and
Spatial Sciences Institute. Jonathan was also a member of the Merger Working
Group which ultimately saw the creation of the Institute by fully merging SSI and
ISA together. Jonathan has held the role of Treasurer since 2010.
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Bernard O’Sullivan - Director 1/7/13 – 30/6/14
Bernard O’Sullivan, General Manager of Survey Results, based in Perth Western
Australia, has had over 14 years’ experience in the construction industry and has
collaborated with some of Australia’s leading companies. Bernard’s enthusiasm and
commitment to engineering surveying is evident in his achievements. Recent
successes include the Water 2 Water Alliance where he was involved in the
construction of the Woodman Point Egg-Shaped Digester. His involvement resulted
in being awarded in the Infrastructure & Construction Section of the 2010 Spatial
Excellence Awards. He is the Chair of the Engineering and Mining Surveying
Commission.
Bernard holds a Diploma of Engineering and Mine Surveying. He specialises in all
areas of engineering surveying, but his specialty is the coordination of Machine
Control Systems.

Gypsy Bhalla – Director

Chris McAlister – Director

1/7/13 – 30/6/14
Gypsy Bhalla has a degree in Applied Science, majoring in Remote Sensing and
Geographic Information Systems from the University of Canberra, Australia. She has
worked in the commercial sector in Spatial information Technology focusing on client
delivery of imagery and GIS based integrated products, analysis and modeling. She
moved to the Australian Centre for Remote Sensing and the Department of Defence,
where she has remained within the Remote Sensing and Spatial data areas for over
20 years.
Her current role is within Geoscience Australia (GA) in the 'Geographic Information
for Defence' role. She has previously held roles in SSI and the Spatial and Surveying
Sciences Institute (SSSI) as an active ACT Region Committee member since 2005,
Remote Sensing and Photogrammetry Chair (RS&P 2009/2010), National Women in
Spatial Chair (WIS 2009) and a Board member of the SSSI over the last five years.

1/7/13 – 30/6/14
Chris McAlister is a Surveying and Spatial consultant, who graduated from the
University of New South Wales in 2006 with a Bachelor and Masters degree in
Surveying and Spatial Information Systems Engineering. She has worked for a
number of government bodies and private sector companies, in both the Surveying
and GIS disciplines. She is currently undertaking her registration to become a
Cadastral Surveyor, completing her GISP-AP certification and studying for a Diploma
of Business Management.
Chris has been a member of the Institute of Surveyors since her student days, was a
founding member of SSI and now the SSSI, where she has been Chair of Queensland
Region since 2010. Chris is Past Chair of the Queensland Young Professionals
committee, a Vice Chair of the FIG Young Surveyors Network, and also chairs a FIG
working group on Educational Marketing.
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Danielle Beaudreau – Director

1/7/13 – 30/6/14
Danielle Beaudreau has a Bachelor in Marine Biology from The University of New
Haven in the US and a Masters in Applied Science Environmental Science from the
University of Sydney where she concentrated on geographic information systems.
She has worked in both public and private sectors in GIS and remote sensing. She
currently works at Geoscience Australia as a GIS officer working on data integration
and imagery management.
Danielle has held the role of the National YP Chair for the past year and has also
during this period served as the YP Rep on the SSSI Board

Simon Ironside – Director (Retired)
1/7/13 – 15/10/13
Simon Ironside is a Level 1 Certified Hydrographic Surveyor and a Registered
Professional Surveyor. He holds a Higher Diploma in Land Surveying from the North East
London Polytechnic and a Bachelor of Surveying Degree from the University of Otago.
He worked in the North Sea oil and gas industry from 1980 until his return to New
Zealand in 1991. He has also worked throughout the Middle East, South East Asia and
West Africa. He was involved in all stages of the hydrographic surveying and positioning
elements of offshore hydrocarbon exploration and production as a hydrographic
surveyor, party chief, project manager and consultant. He is currently Chair of the
Hydrography Commission. He was awarded Level 1 Accreditation in 1998 and elected to
the Australian Hydrographic Surveyors Accreditation Panel (now the Australasian
Hydrographic Surveyors Certification Panel) in 2001, stepping down in July 2010.
Simon Callaghan – Director (Retired)
1/7/13 – 15/10/13
Simon is the GIS Coordinator at The District Council of Mt Barker in Adelaide, having
previously worked within private consulting and the South Australian State
Government. He has sat on the SA Young Professionals’ Committee for the past nine
years, including holding office as its Chair in 2007-08. He has also sat on SSSI's
Consultative Council, the SA Regional Committee, and SSSI's Membership Committee,
and has been Chair of the National YP Committee from 2010-2013.
Simon undertook his undergraduate studies at Flinders University, completing a
Bachelor of Arts, a Bachelor of Environmental Management, and a Bachelor of Applied
Geographical Information Systems. He has completed a Master of Science in Public
Policy and Management from Carnegie Mellon University, and is completing a Master of
Business Administration (Executive) from UNSW in 2013.
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Chris Pettit – Director (Retired)
1/7/13 – 15/10/13
Associate Professor Christopher Pettit is the Strategic Implementation Coordinator of
the Australian Urban Research Infrastructure Network (AURIN), the University of
Melbourne. He is a Director of SSSI, member of the SSSI Consultative Council, Chair of
the Victorian Region SSSI and Chair of the ISPRS working group on Geographical
Visualization and Virtual Reality. He has published more than 100 papers in the areas of
geographical visualization, e-research, spatial planning and decision support systems.
His current research interests lie in the design of user-centric participatory planning and
visualisation tools, which can be applied to a myriad of spatial planning problems
focused on managing the built and natural environment including climate change and
population pressures.

Jim Curnow – Company Secretary
1/7/13 – 30/6/14
Jim Curnow, as a private practicing surveyor, has elevated the profession of
surveying, devoted considerable energy and pride to his professional activities
and has served the Institution of Surveyors, Australia at the highest level both in
his state and nationally. He continues this by demonstrating the same level of
exemplary dedication, commitment and service to the spatial community
through his involvement with the Spatial Sciences Institute and now the
Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute.
Throughout his career Jim has worked energetically and enthusiastically for the
profession and is held in high esteem by his peers throughout Australia. He
continues to be a leader within the surveying profession by flying the surveying
flag within allied professional groups.
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Roger Buckley – CEO / Company Secretary
1/7/13 – 30/6/14
Roger Buckley currently holds the position of Chief Executive Officer of the SSSI
and has done so since September 2009. In this role he is responsible for the
Leadership and Strategic Direction of the Institute at the National Level. Prior to
joining SSSI he was the General Manager at the ACT & Region Chamber of
Commerce and Industry where he was responsible for the daily managerial
functions of the organisation. He also held the Director position of Employment,
Education and Training where he was responsible for administering two
government funded programs relating to education and training and providing a
consultancy service to members on Employment Education and Training.
Roger currently holds a Bachelor of Management and a Graduate Diploma in
Business Administration and has over thirty years of administrative experience
behind him.
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Membership
Overseas,
51
Northern Territory, 33

Western Australia, 476
Queensland, 741
New South
Wales, 394
South
Australia, 358

New
Zealand, 41

Victoria, 311
Australian
Capital Territory,
118

Tasmania, 115

376

103

141

Membership Figures as at the 30th of June 2014

1277

741
16

Membership

Member, 1891

Associate, 104
Affiliate, 41

Fellow, 120
1st Year Graduate, 4

Student, 418

Honorary Fellow, 34
Part Time
Student, 2

2nd Year
Graduate, 24

Total Membership
2638
Membership Figures as at the 30th of June 2014
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Regional Reports
Queensland Regional Report
Chris McAlister, Chair
Regional Committee members in October 2013/2014 were:
Chris McAlister (Chair), Les Searle (Treasurer) Alan Hobson, Arron Setnik, Chris Swane, David Pullar,
Dipak Paudyal, Karl Warschau, Mark Allen, Matthew Fry, Nick Lawrence, Patrick O'Connor, Peter
Murphy, Stephen Clague

Regional Committee Meetings
Regional Committee held 10 meetings in the period from July 2013 to June 2014. Topics for policy formulation were:
Queensland’s Sustaining Partner Program, policy for the conduct of SSSI, special interest groups, stimulating membership
growth, Young Professionals’ interaction with the student groups, budget and finance, ADAC, Surveyor General feedback,
Land Reform feedback and career promotion strategies.
Finances
The financial structure for SSSI has been remodeled so we are currently in a new era for the Institute. The focus is to
increase membership and revenue from events. The revenue generated will go back into servicing members.
Membership
An analysis of the Queensland membership shows that the proportion of YP to members over 35 has grown over the last
few years and there is a strong focus to attract more YP’s in the near future. Total membership is currently sitting at 684
and Queensland continues to hold the largest membership base for any State or Territory. Our student membership
continues to show strong growth as well.
Congratulations to our members who were appointed as Fellows in this financial year - Nick Lawrence and Shane
Simmons.
Continuing Professional Development
The Hervey Bay conference went very well with 71 registrations, topics covering Certification for GIS and Engineering
Surveying, 3D Qld, Qld Globe, Land Resource Survey and Agricultural Land Class, Capture to Database, UAV's for
Government, Mobile GIS: improving workflows and efficiencies at Council, ADAC, Mapping Terrain Changes, GNSS
networks, Bundaberg Floods, Ambulatory Boundaries and GIS for Surveyors
The Graduate Surveyors Weekend held in Toowoomba in October was a residential school style camp, aimed at providing
graduates with the information and skills to complete components of their registration that may not always be provided
in the workplace. This was a great learning weekend and we are looking forward to rolling out the Camps to other areas.
Townsville turned on the heat for our 2 ½ day Northern Group conference in October. The conference was opened by the
Hon Andrew Cripps, the Minister for the Natural Resources and Mines.
The big surveying stream had presentations on Carbon Abatement Interests, Qld Globe, National Electronic
Conveyancing, High Density Development Easements, a half-day Cadastral Reinstatement Workshop, Risk Management
in the Workplace (complete with pictures!) and everybody’s favourite – Ambulatory Boundaries. We had some brilliant
presenters from DNRM, Council and private enterprise.
Our Spatial stream had a full-day of Open Source workshops which were well-attended and appreciated. We also saw a
presentation on Spatial Apps and Database Design for GIS and concluded with a fill-in presentation from our resident
Storm Chaser!
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November saw us travel to Gladstone for the Central Group conference at the Harvey Road Hotel. Fantastic venue for a
terrific conference. We had a great array of presenters once again with topics including community title scheme
developments, Central Qld regional plans & State planning policy, ADAC, legislation updates & Statutory covenants and
SARA/Das & Strategic Cropping Land. Our regular updates from the Land Surveying Commission, Surveyors Board and
Destination Spatial were well received. We also squeezed in a UAV field trip. It was an action-packed couple of days!
Our Christmas function is traditionally a time for us to thank our Queensland Regional Committee, Editorial Committee,
Land Surveying Commission and partners. Certificates were awarded included a special certificate for our Fellow, Nick
Lawrence.
Our guest speaker for the evening was Phillip Parton. Phillip discussed his time with the Australian Youth Ambassador for
Development (AYAD) program. This involves young professional placements in developing countries throughout AsiaPacific and Africa.
2014 started with a SSSI Strategy Day. Committee members, volunteers and staff bunkered down for the day to dissect
our goals from last year, and work on ones for this year. Hot topics included our budgets, certification, cpd, education,
advocacy and community engagement, membership and our town groups. It was an intense and stimulating day.
SSSI presented a Cadastral Reinstatement Roundtable in June. This was relevant to surveyors who wanted to refresh
their skills and knowledge or those requiring new information, such as those recently graduated or seeking SBQ
registration as Cadastral Surveyors. These sessions are always popular, particularly with graduates.
The first in the three-part series for Surveyors – LSC Practical Application for Surveyors – was presented in June. Topics
included: The Modern Role of the Surveyor in Project Management, BIM and Data Management; Height Certification and
NGL; ICSM 2034 and 3D QLD; When Easements are required and where to get the details; Reading and understanding a
DA; Sewer and Water Legislation; Ambulatory Boundaries case studies; NLSC and Mining Tenure Update; DNRM Update
including Regulation Review, ICSM 2034 Background and Intent. Part two of the series will be held later this year, in
November.
Other events included a Fellows and Honorary Fellows Dinner.
QSEA: Function and Awards
SSSI Queensland and SIBA hosted the fourth Queensland Spatial Excellence Awards in October with 120 attendees. We
were entertained by a troupe of very talented burlesque dancers.
Conclusion
2013/14 was a time for extreme change for SSSI not only structurally with the loss of the QLD ROM but financially. Now
that the change has been implemented and a new ROM in place the Queensland office looks forward to driving
membership and a higher return from events. We would like to thank our Sustaining Partners for their continued support
throughout the year, and our thanks also go to the staff, members, presenters and committees that continue to make
SSSI Queensland great.
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Regional Reports
NSW Regional Report
Gabriel van Wyk, Chair
The past year was one of our best, yet one of the toughest years for SSSI NSW. At the start of
the year, the NSW committee decided to reduce the number of small events that we were
offering and to replace these with one annual two day regional conference. For the remainder,
we decided to focus our efforts on webinars, which in the past proved to be both popular and
profitable.
Tensions in the spatial and the survey communities were running high and was causing a lot of confusion and frustration.
I met with Graeme Stuart, the then president of ISNSW to discuss a more amicable way forward between ISNSW and
SSSI. We realised that although we may not be able to 'fix' all of the issues, it was imperative that our organisations
continued to talk to each other. The meeting resulted in a now regular discussion forum between SSSI and ISNSW where
issues are raised and discussed.
In the spirit of cooperation and because it was the 200th anniversary of the crossing of Blue Mountain Divide, our
inaugural conference was a collaboration between SSSI and ISNSW. We themed the conference 'Crossing the great
Divide'. The conference proved to be a great success, both as a CPD event and as a conduit towards new friendships and
understanding. During the remainder of the year this spirit of cooperation has continued, and this is now opening up
doors for us to better serve the spatial community.
This year we will continue to tackle the issues facing our community. We still have many and our focus for this year will
be on the following:





Handling of regional awards
Improving our services to our regional members
Improving the industry perspective of spatial certification and CPD
Collaboration with standards development and implementation.

A great thanks to our committee members who have all worked hard. A special thanks to Kelly for her efforts, often
going beyond the call of duty. We wish her all the best for the next few months of maternity leave. Enjoy the new
addition to your family Kelly!
SSSI spends a lot of time and energy to set up CPD points carrying events. We listen to our members and we pick the
events to best serve our members. For 2013/14 year our SSSI NSW Events included:
1. GISP-AP Certification Workshop – 9th July 2013
2. 3D Spatial Data from Photogrammetric Point Clouds Webinar – 31st July 2013
3. Remote Sensing and Earth Observation Fields Twilight Seminar – 14th August 2013
4. Clever Maps and Apps for a Smartphone Generation Webinar – 25th September 2013
5. Foundation Data Themes for NSW Webinar Update – 2nd October 2013
6. Joint SSSI and ISNSW Young Professional Seminar – 15th October 2013
7. Meet the SSSI Board Networking Drinks – 15th October 2013
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8. NSW Regional Conference "Spatial Networking - Crossing the Great Divide" - 15th & 16th November 2013
9. Dynamics in the Next Generation Datum Webinar – 4th December 2013
10. LiDAR Applications Webinar – 21st January 2014
11. Remote Sensing and Earth Observation Fields Seminar – 25th February 2014
12. SSSI NSW Networking Drinks – 25th February 2014
13. Cartography and Map Design Workshop – 3rd March 2014
14. Survey Mark Preservation Webinar – 25th March 2014
15. Remote Sensing and Earth Observation Fields Webinar – 30th April 2014
16. Locate14 Snapshot Seminar – 29th May 2014
17. AURIN Masterclass – 17th June 2014
For a report on each event please refer to our Past Events page on the SSSI NSW homepage.
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ACT Regional Report
Greg Ledwidge, Chair
Introduction
The membership in the SSSI, ACT region is comprised largely of traditional land surveyors and
spatial professionals in the GIS discipline. There are a smaller number of members in the other
disciplines and our members are broadly spread across the public and private sectors.
Being located in the seat of federal government there are unique opportunities for ACT regional
members. The proximity to federal and territory government organizations and long established tertiary institutions
allows our regional members, be they from the private or public sectors, to readily access these opportunities. It is a goal
to build the capacity of our members to best take advantage of these opportunities and to provide surveying and spatial
education opportunities for the next generation.
Highlights and achievements
One of the highlights was the second ACT Regional Conference which was held in August 2013. A change of location to a
larger venue and the growth of event sponsorship saw the conference increase delegate numbers and build substantially
on the success of 2012.
The conference was again organized by a committee comprising regional Young Professionals with guidance being given
by the previous organizers. While the task of organizing a conference can be onerous it gave the members of the
organizing committee the opportunity to develop existing and new skills which will be of benefit in their professional
careers.
Importantly the lessons learnt from running each conference have been passed forward to the next organizing
committee.
Early 2014 saw the installation of the very first ‘CORS in schools’ receiver in Australia. The receiver was installed at
Melrose High School in Canberra with the support of Geoscience Australia, LPI in NSW and the Office of the SurveyorGeneral in the ACT. The opening of the CORS installation coincided with opening of a refurbished school science
laboratory by Australia’s leading scientist Professor Ian Chubb. The laboratory was re-furbished with funds provided
largely by private individuals and has become part of the school’s ‘ACE Science Program’. The program brings science
mentors and school students together to successfully complete science projects ranging from marine biology to geology
to the spatial sciences.
These events presented the ACT region with a wonderful opportunity to take surveying and spatial sciences to schools in
the ACT region. At Melrose High School we provided a volunteer to help two students, from years 9 and 10, include a
surveying and online mapping component to their geology project. While it was a very small step for the SSSI in the ACT
other educational opportunities have come from it.
Looking forward to 2013/14
We have some big events on the education front over 2014-15. The first event will be held in late October to
demonstrate surveying, GIS and UAV skills and technologies to year 7 to 10 students from Harrison School in Canberra. It
will be big day out for teachers, students and our volunteers as we complete a topographic survey of part of a heritage
farm in Canberra. There will be surveying and GNSS competitions and we will produce aerial photography of the site from
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a UAV. Another event is planned for early March 2015 and others will follow.
The ACT region plans to run events to benefit both members and the regional community. We plan to run an asset
mapping day to support the Rural Fire Service in the nearby NSW region. Members will get an opportunity to enhance
their skills and make a significant contribution to our regional community.
Canberra held its 100th anniversary in 2013. As a contribution to the celebration the young professionals and other
volunteers replaced King O’Malleys peg in the same location as it was originally placed 100 years before. The peg was
placed on Capital Hill to mark the beginning of Canberra. Volunteers are now planning how to replace the peg from 2013
with a more permanent mark. This is not such an easy thing to do in Canberra given bureaucracy.
We also intend to add run a number of targeted training programs in 2014-15 to add to the personal and professional
skill base of our members.
Conclusion:
In Canberra this year we have seen some significant steps forward in adding real benefits to membership. We are
providing opportunities to add to the skills of all of our members, building an education program to provide the members
of the future and looking to make a substantial contribution to the general community also. The next few years will be
exciting for the region and I look forward to adding a number of extra ACT regional achievements in next year’s report.
Greg Ledwidge
Acting Chair – ACT Region

This ACT Region Report was prepared by current Chair Greg Ledwidge.
The ACT Region Chair for 2013-2014 was Gypsy Bhalla.
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South Australia Regional Report
Gary Maguire, Chair
This year I stepped back in to the role of South Australian Chair after the success of David
Trengove’s leadership of the SA Committee over the past two years. We continued on with the
three themes this year to make the South Australian region a leader within SSSI as an engaged
community of professionals. By keeping it simple and focusing on the three themes of Women in
Spatial, Young Professionals and Back to the Sciences, South Australia has continued to provide
outstanding value for money services, exceptional networking experiences and opportunities for
membership growth.
This year like many past years South Australia delivered an excellent Spatial Information Day (SID2013) highlighting the
sciences of the spatial industry. SID2013 was a huge success, with attendance by over 370 delegates from all areas of
private, government, academia and students.
Supporting SSSI-SA theme one, the day began early with a Careers Breakfast hosted by Women in Spatial. This was an
inspirational start to the day, with five interesting speakers sharing their career journeys and goals. With a focus on
theme three SID2013 had keynotes from MedSTAR Emergency Medical Retrieval and world famous movie special effects
company Rising Sun Pictures. These presenters gave everybody an insight on how spatial information is being used in
alternative ways. With four concurrent sessions including a Young Professional (theme two) organised stream there was
something for everybody, covering a range of topics, from UAVs and 3D laser scanning to satellites, smart phones and
southern hairy-nosed wombats.
The South Australian Spatial Excellent Awards Gala Dinner finished off the day where VIPs and guests enjoyed fine food
and entertainment. Congratulations to our winners:
Undergraduate/Graduate Project Award
Tina Schroeder, University of Adelaide
Postgraduate Research Award
Allen Mcilwee, Flinders University
Special Achievement Award
Duane Van Schoonhoven
Spatial Professional of the Year
David Byrne
JB & JW Calder Award
Michael Neitschke
Award for Environment and Sustainability
University of Adelaide, Earth and Environmental Sciences
Landscape Futures Analysis Tool
Award for Innovation and Commercialisation
Aerometrex
Aero3Dpro
Award for People and Community
SA Health and Esri Australia
OPAL (Obesity Prevention and Lifestyle) GIS Environments Evaluation
Award for Spatial Enablement
SA Health
The Geospatial Enablement Programme

24

Regional Reports
This year the South Australian committee provided a number of events and workshops some included:
•

VIP Cocktail party for our Sustaining Partners and members

•

Cadastral Breakfast Workshops

•

Introduced free Boardroom Lunch Series talks

•

Career Development evenings

•

Participated in the Tertiary Studies and Career Expo

•

Had a table at the UN International Women’s Day Breakfast

•

Young Professionals Speed Networking and Pub Stroll

•

Highly successful State of Play Series – State Government Forum

As the Institute moves into a new service model the committee will try and continue to provide exceptional event and
services to the South Australia community as it has done in the past. You will see Spatial Information Day remain on the
calendar; there will be some new workshops coming and the return of many successful forums like Speed Networking
and State of Play forum. The Young Professionals will continue to engage with students and build up the student
membership so that these new professional have a place to learn, share and grow.
This past year has been the first year for some time now that SA has had a dedicated Regional Office Manager. This has
made an extraordinary difference in the committee’s ability to provide services to the membership. The committee and I
would like to thank Rachel Cress for her commitment to SSSI-SA and the opportunities she has brought to SSSI-SA.
I want to thank the committee for their commitment and passion in bringing events together and giving our members an
opportunity to learn and be connected.
I personally would like to thank the South Australian Committee, the Young Professional Committee and the SID2013
Committee for their amazing work and commitment to make SSSI SA what it is today.
Finally, I would like to thank our local sustaining Partners – Aerometrex, Alexander Symonds, Fyfe, Surveyors Board SA,
C.R.Kennedy, TAFESA, University of Adelaide, University of South Australia, Flinders University, Kersbrook Hills Wine, EFM
Health Clubs. Without these partners the South Australian spatial community would be less.

SSSI-SA Chair
Gary Maguire
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Victoria Regional Report
Zaffar Sadiq Mohamed-Ghouse, Chair
Introduction
2013-14 for the Victorian SSSI had been an eventful year with a successful Spatial Summit with
key notes from international guests such as the President of FIG and The Surveyor General of
India. The popular Young Professionals’ Mentoring programme, Land Surveying Commission’s
UAV workshop and series of twilight seminars, Cadastre 2034 workshop consultation, Spatial
Cartography Commission’s Emerging Technologies event, GISP-AP certification webinars. Participation at the Victorian
Spatial Councils strategy for next five years and the Newtech regional event were the major programme of events. The
committee held events in collaboration with other professional bodies in the State such as Planning Institute of Victoria,
Institute of Surveyors Victoria, Associate Consulting Surveyors to co-brand SSSI events and attract new membership base.
Highlights and Achievements





VIC SSSI Annual Plan: The day brought commission, young professional chairs and other representatives
together. The half day event helped plan the calendar for the year 2013-14. The Victorian strategy for SSSI was
also reviewed.
Young Professionals Mentoring Program attracted a successful bonding of mentors and mentees. We had
received very positive feedback response from both Mentors and Mentees. Due to its huge success the program
has been recently rolled over for 2014-15.
Education has been a major focus for the Vic SSSI Region this financial year with SSSI continuing to support both
the University of Melbourne and RMIT University annual dinners through sponsorship and prizes.
Victorian Spatial Strategy: SSSI was actively involved in providing feedback to the Victorian Spatial Strategy for
next five years. The representatives of SSSI also participated in the consultation workshop in capacity of the
Professional Body in the state.

Major Events


Victorian Spatial Summit 2013: Victorian Spatial Summit themed ‘Catalyst for Innovation’ attracted close to 200
delegates. It featured international, national and local experts who contributed both through a series of keynote
presentations and technical sessions held across three concurrent streams. The technical sessions specifically
focused on land surveying, spatial information, remote sensing and hydrography.
o Our keynote session commenced with a global perspective of our industry presented by the President of
FIG, Cheehai Teo. We then explored the challenges and opportunities in India with Dr Swarna Subba Rao,
the Surveyor General of India and heard about Professor Nicholas Chrisman’s experience as Director of
GEOIDE in Canada since 1998 until he recently joined RMIT University as the head of the Geospatial
Sciences discipline.
o Helen Owens, General Manager of the Office of Spatial Policy at the Department of Resources Energy
and Tourism, presented an Australian context. There was also an interactive panel facilitated by
Professor Abbas Rajabifard, Director of the Centre for Spatial Data Infrastructures and Land
Administration at the University of Melbourne. The panel discussion encouraged delegates to
contemplate the future of the spatial industry.
o The 3D cadastre session was a fascinating insight into where the future is heading as were many of the
presentations covering innovative approaches and tools, latest technologies and online data delivery
services.
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The URISA Cartography and Map design workshop: The topics covered included the cartographic process, spatial
data fundamentals, map design principles, and map production. The workshop combined expert lectures, based on
material developed by URISA, with numerous practical group exercises and discussions. Amongst the highlights of the
day was an inspirational presentation on design, given by Professor William Cartwright, RMIT.



FIG workshop: International Federation of Surveyor’s (FIG) Workshop held on 11th September 2013 in Melbourne
Australia sponsored by SSSI. It was held as a pre-summit workshop for the annual Victorian Spatial Summit. The
workshop reviewed the definition of a Surveyor as defined by FIG in 1991. This definition is broad and includes all
forms of spatial professionals under its umbrella. Attendees included the FIG President Cheehai Teo, the Commission
1 Chair Elect Brian Coutts and well-known representatives from the surveying and spatial industry. We also had a few
people giving a community perspective. This included a futurist who helped focus on the views of external users of
industry services.

The discussion had five key topics:







New technology/future scan
Young Professionals view on working and fitting into the spatial industry
The future of surveying as a regulated profession
Education and professional development
Underrepresented groups, indigenous groups and those in remote areas

Cadastre 2034: The land surveying commission organised a successful consultation workshop to get feedback for the
National initiative Cadastre 2034 paper amongst its spatial community. The participation of the Surveyor General of
Victoria, Head of Melbourne and RMIT schools participated and presented in the workshop. The comments obtained
from the workshop were compiled by SSSI and provided to ICSM as a feedback regarding Cadastre 2034.

What to look forward to 2014/2015
The committee in Victoria has taken a decision to reduce the number of events and provide fewer events with quality.
Where ever possible, SSSI Victoria will make an effort to co-brand or partner with other Spatial Professional Bodies such
as ISV and ACS in Victoria to provide networking platform as well as diversify the member base. The committee will work
hard to bring a value proposition to its members by providing targeted events to the members. A new Special Interest
Group (SIG) on Marketing and Logistics using spatial technology is envisaged to be kicked off in the year 2014-15.
Likewise other SIGs will be explored in case of Disaster Management and Response. The committee is also keen in
exploring partnering with other non-spatial professional bodies such as Intelligent Transport Systems, Australian
Computer Society, IEEE Society, Water associations and Mining professional associations to bring some co-hosted events.
We are also planning to use webinars as much as possible during the year. We will also explore conducting some
Professional and Career Development events for Graduate members and members at mid-level of career. A SSSI Fellow
luncheon is on the cards as well to bring along our valued Fellows to contribute to the growth of SSSI committee in
Victoria.
Conclusion
In summary, the SSSI Victorian committee is looking for a challenging year ahead with a list of aspirations keeping in mind
the value proposition offered to the members, increase in membership and network with other SSSI regions to
communicate better and learn from other region’s experience.
Zaffar Sadiq Mohamed-Ghouse
SSSI-VIC Chair

27

Regional Reports
Western Australia Regional Report
Kerry Smyth, Chair
Introduction
The Western Australian region has experienced a period of change, challenge and growth in
2013-14. After 4 years as Chair dedicated to steering membership growth and building a strong
financial position for the region, Peter Douglas handed over to Kerry Smyth.
Challenges arose when the usual calendar of activities was disrupted by other industry events
closely aligned to our agenda and beneficial to members; the WALIS Forum, Curtin Anniversary and CRCSI Roadshow. A
changeover of staff during the planning stages of the annual conference and award events and a pent-up agenda of CPD
activities added to the challenge. Growth and change was evident in the membership profile, with an increase in the
number of women and youth engaging as volunteers.
Highlights and Achievements
The Spatial Excellence Awards demonstrated the strength of the industry in WA and the merit of our people. SSSIWA
member Linda Morgan (Landgate) received national accolades as Professional of the Year, along with other winners Jake
Buswell, Nathan Eaton and Xin Liu at the APSEA presentations at Parliament House Canberra in April 2014.
More than 500 attended the WALIS Forum and WA Spatial Excellence Awards Dinner in November 2013, events jointly
badged by WALIS, SSSI and SIBA. Individual WA award winners were: Jake Buswell (Undergraduate Student); Xin Liu
(Postgraduate Student); Jian Hong Xia (Education Development); Graham Marion (dec) (Special Achievement); Nathan
Eaton (Young Professional of the Year); Bernard O’Sullivan (Service to the WA Surveying & Spatial Sciences Community);
Linda Morgan (Professional of the Year).
In response to the Board’s announcement of a new financial framework, WA provided substantial input and feedback to
the Consultative Council. WA has focused on budget planning and establishing good business practices, and negotiations
have been finalised for an office lease with WAIS. Six (6) bi-monthly editions of the popular WA Region newsletter were
produced.
Although WA’s overall membership dropped by 4% there was fresh interest with over 50 new members. WA
membership profile as at 18/6/2014:
TOTAL
EMSC
LSC
HC
RSPC
SICC

467
139
198
24
14
92

Major Events
The Regional Management Committee met bi-monthly providing governance in decision making, robust debate and a
strong commitment to promote successful events.
SSSIWA staff and volunteers ran several networking events and CPD seminars for the Commissions, while national rescheduling of all regional conferences to post June had a predicted impact on WA’s revenue position. This has been
managed so that in future Conference income will be received early in the financial year.
The WA Land Surveying Commission held its monthly Cadastral Interest Group meetings and four CPD seminars which
were all well attended.
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The WA Engineering & Mine Surveying Commission held bi-monthly Interest Group meetings, encouraging participation
by its growing membership. The Hydrography Commission was not visibly active this year in WA.
The Spatial Information & Cartography and Remote Sensing & Photogrammetry Commissions continue to collaborate
closely introducing the Colloquium academic feature. Unfortunately two Going Places Seminar events and Cartography
Map Design workshop were postponed due to a crowded calendar of competing events.
Curtin University Spatial Sciences celebrated an anniversary year in 2013 with many highlight events promoted and
supported by SSSI.
Other successful events included Fellows’ Dinner, Golf and Lawn Bowls Challenges, YP events in collaboration with
WingIT and GeoRabble, SWAGS & LSLB regional seminar.
What to look forward to 2014/2015
At its Strategic Planning Day in January 2014, the Regional Management Committee committed to five key priorities and
has been working to implement this Agenda for the benefit of members.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Certification
Continuing Professional Development
Promotion of education and spatial sciences industry careers
Coordination of the profession (across silos)
Community Engagement

WA is looking forward to a year filled with new prospects and initiatives. The year will kick-off with the “Hi Five” new
members’ welcome event, including the President’s Address and Board representation at this and other stakeholder
meetings. The WASSS Conference 2014 “Blurring the Boundaries” is planned for September alongside the WASEA Dinner
as a seamless collaboration between SSSI & SIBA.
As well as the popular CPD events, there will be more “Masterclasses” and events targeted at outreach for wider
membership. Going Places Seminars and Curtin Colloquium will be carried forward while the Engineering & Mining
Surveying seminars are set to pitch online delivery and webinars.
Meetings, events and training sessions at the Nedlands office will be serviced with upgraded facilities, whilst members as
always will continue to enjoy the network events, sports days and social functions.
Conclusion
The WA region has been supported in 2013-14 by its Sustaining Partners: Whelans; Haefeli Lysnar; Landgate;
LandSurveys; WALIS, C.R. Kennedy Survey Solutions; PSS Group; City of Gosnells. Their contribution supports our
capacity to deliver WA based events and strategic initiatives and we acknowledge and thank these organisations for their
continuing support.
Sincere thanks and best wishes go to WA Region office staff, Faye Scorer and Damian O’Donnell who have both left
SSSIWA after 23 years and 1 year, respectively. Also a warm welcome to incoming Operations Manager Helen McNeill.
Finally, grateful acknowledgement to the small army of helpers. The Institute would not exist without the support of
numerous volunteer members who give their time generously to committees, interest groups and events for the benefit
of SSSIWA members.
Kerry Smyth
SSSI-WA Chair
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Tasmania Regional Report
Alex Leith, Chair
Introduction:
This last year was a new beginning for the Tasmanian Regional Committee. We have a new
committee, and we are feeling energised and invigorated. Having said that, there is space for a
few new committee members, so we’re working on that, and we’re continuing to run the same
great events that we’ve always run, plus a few different small ones.
Committee
The new Tasmanian committee formed in late 2013 includes a diverse group of individuals. As of July in 2014 Alex Leith
has taken over the role of Chair, following the resignation of Darren Llewellyn. Other committee members include the
Tasmanian Surveyor General, Michael Giudici, Mick Rose, Colin Smith and Sebastian Verbeteen, all surveyors from
Launceston, Lara Rector, the YP representative from Launceston, Dawn Hendrick, the Spatial Information and
Cartography representative from Hobart and Simon Allen, who is our Hydrographic Surveying representative.
Darren Llewellyn was Chair for the last year or so, and did a fantastic job getting his head around the workings of the
Regional Committee. He almost single-handedly, convened the state conference in 2013 at the Launceston Country Club
Resort, which was a very successful event and well attended. Unfortunately Darren has resigned his Chair position, and
I’d like to take this opportunity to thank him for the five years he spent volunteering on the Tasmanian committee and
for his continuing support for the industry through his Spatial in Schools initiatives.
The committee is serving around 141 members, including a massive cohort of around 30 student members who recently
joined at a SSSI sponsored barbeque in 2014.
Major Events:
This last financial year saw Tasmania’s two major events run successfully. The 2013 Tasmanian Regional Conference was
well received. There were around 70 people in attendance, and 50 people at the awards dinner. The theme of the
conference was ‘Positioning Ourselves’ and included presentations from local stalwarts, such as Scott Strong and
Christopher Watson, and from interstate presenters, such as Major Daryn Radford and Lindsay Perry.
The Tasmanian APSEA awards dinner was held after the conference, the award winners were:



Undergraduate of the Year: Iain Clark
Young Professional of the Year: Alex Leith

The State of GIS conference is our local spatial information and cartography event, and was run differently this year. The
event was incepted by Mark Chilcott, and after six years years on the committee and organising six State of GIS events,
Mark has resigned. Mark’s impact on the Tasmanian spatial community has been great, and he mentored me in
coordinating this years State of GIS, so thank you Mark for creating something great and for ensuring we can continue
running this fantastic event. The event itself went extremely well, there were well over a hundred people in attendance,
and nine presenters and eleven trade sponsors meant that there was a lot to talk about. The event was run at a new,
larger venue and retained the original formula of short, sharp presentations. This event will be on again in May 2015.
Some other events around the state include:



Cadastral workshops in the north and the south of the state, organised by Mick Rose and attended by a large
percentage of the surveyors in the state
GeoRabble events, organised to the side of SSSI, sponsored by local companies and free to attend.
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Several twilight talks, free Christmas functions in Launceston and Hobart, the (URISA) Cartography and Map
Design Workshop and much more.

Sustaining Partners
I’d like to take this opportunity to recognise our sustaining partners, listed here:




PDA, our Regional Gold partners
Ultimate Positioning, Regional Silver partners
Hobart City Council, Regional Silver partners.

Looking to the Future
The SSSI as a whole is changing, with the modifications to how membership funds are distributed. In Tasmania, we don’t
have a Regional Operations Manager, and as such, don’t have any paid employees of the SSSI involved in the committee.
What this means is that the committee is wholly formed of volunteers and with the new distribution of funds, is wholly
funded by events and sustaining partners. To that end, the committee is building more relationships, both financial and
in-kind, with sustaining partners and we have been talking with the South Australian committee and are looking to follow
their lead in working with non-spatial groups. This makes a lot of sense in Tasmania with the opportunity to work with
Sense-T partners, who have sensors with locations getting rolled out in vineyards, oyster farms and other industries
horizontal to spatial.
Initiatives like GeoRabble are also aimed at building the relationships with the non-spatial sectors. While the SSSI handles
the professional aspects of the surveying and spatial community, such as certification, major event organisation and
regional, national and international representation, embracing the informal spatial community is increasingly important
these days. It’s especially important in the cloud- and app-centric world of spatial information, although increasingly in
surveying too, with the consumerisation of high-precision GNSS.
Conclusion
There is much to do. The Tasmanian Regional Committee will keep running those great events that we all catch up at.
We’ll be getting involved representing the industry at all opportunities. And we want to get involved more broadly in the
community of both formal and informal spatial people. I’d like to work together in the open to continue making things
better for the broader community, and to involve more people in what the committee does. But most of all, I would like
us to ensure that the SSSI is seen as a valuable organisation worthy of members’ and potential members’ attention, and
their patronage. So here’s to you, the members and potential members that we currently or hope to represent.

This Tasmania Region Report was prepared by current Chair Alex Leith.
The Tasmania Region Chair for 2013-2014 was Darren Llewellyn.
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Northern Territory Regional Report
Rob Sarib, Chair
Introduction
The 2013 - 2014 term was very quiet for the SSSI NT Committee. Many of our regular and
hardworking committee members were unfortunately pre-occupied with "day time" work and
other personal commitments. As a consequence there were only a handful of meetings and
gatherings during the past year.
Highlights, Achievements and Major Events
The main highlight for our region during this term was the function at the Il Lido Waterfront restaurant. This gathering
was well attended and at this meeting it was decided that our SSSI region’s activities needed to be revived.
What to look forward to 2014/2015
In 2014-15 the Committee of SSSI NT will endeavor to provide and reinvigorate membership services with a focus to rebuilding our Territory spirit. Several technical days are being planned for the new year and we hope to be in
communication with our members through regular emails and newsletters.
Conclusion
On behalf of the SSSI NT members we would like to thank Garry West for his contributions to our surveying and spatial
sciences industry, and to wish him all the best on his retirement. We also like to offer a special thanks to Renee Bartolo
and Josh Forner for all of their tireless work, efforts, and leadership over the past years, and look forward to their return.

This Northern Territory Region Report was prepared by current Chair Rob Sarib.
The Northern Territory Region Chair for 2013-2014 was Renee Bartolo.
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New Zealand Regional Report
Chris Weir, Chair
This is the final annual report from the NZ Region; this year has been dominated by the
discussions around where the future of the spatial professionals within New Zealand laid.
With the completion of the restructure of NZIS (New Zealand Institute of Surveyors) and the
creation of the “Spatial Stream” within the new organisation, the competition for members was
looming large.
The region started consultation with its members to understand which organisation they felt was the best to represent
New Zealand Spatial Professionals now and into the future. The overwhelming consensus was for the NZ Region to enter
discussions with NZIS and the Spatial Stream to ensure that members would not be disadvantaged by moving across to
NZIS. It was felt that NZIS would give NZ Professionals a “New Zealand” voice and influence over spatial decisions within
NZ, which was difficult as SSSI was seen as an Australian organisation and was causing confusion in the market place.
An important part of this discussion was ensuring that the current MOU between NZIS and SSSI is continued and
enhanced to the benefit of both parties. Also that the MOU is extended to provide Specialised Certification for the Spatial
professionals i.e. GISP-AP
During discussions key NZ Region committee members joined the NZIS Spatial Stream setup committee; this meant that
the Spatial Stream now has a strong influence from the SSSI NZ Region.
With all of these preconditions from the consultancy, the NZ Region then advised the members again, this time asking
the members whether they supported the dissolution of the NZ Region in favour of joining NZIS Spatial Stream. It was
also made clear that even if the majority voted to dissolve the Region that joining NZIS was not compulsory and members
could remain with SSSI as an International member, or alternatively they could be members of both organizations.
The majority of responses were in favour of the dissolution of the Region.
The NZ Region was dissolved on 30 June 2014.
Other activities that the Region undertook during the year were:


The Annual Spatial Quiz Evening, attracting 120 spatial professionals
Setting up the New Zealand Spatial Excellence Awards (NZSEA). The region in partnership with SIBA NZ, NZIS and
LINZ has set up the NZSEA which will have its Award Ceremony in November 2014.

As NZ Region Chair I wish to thank the NZRegion Committee members who have had to make some hard decisions this
year in regard to dissolving the Region.
Committee Members - Ben Dash, Simon Ironside, Karl Majorhazi, Jennifer Ryan, Veronika Frank and Catherine
O’Shaughnessy
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Remote Sensing and Photogrammetry Commission Report
Craig Smith, Chair
National RS&P Committee
The Chair and Treasurer were elected during a face-to-face meeting in Melbourne on 22 July
2013. The Committee for the period of this report were:

3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

1.
Craig Smith – Chair
2.
Tim Whiteside/Renee Bartolo – Vice Chair
Chris Bellman – Treasurer
Shona Chisholm – Communications
Nathan Quadros
Petra Helmholz
Stuart Phinn
John Trinder

Major Achievements of the RS&P Commission for 2013-2014
The Quarterly eNewsletter
The production of the eNewsletter continues under the editorship of Karen Cambrell. The Newsletter covers
developments in remote sensing and photogrammetry and is published in May, August, November, and February. There
continues to be a good response to the Newsletter initiative.
Provision of Journals Subscriptions to Members
The Commission invited members to submit requests for subscriptions to peer reviewed professional publications
including the ISPRS Journal for Photogrammetry and Remote Sensing, and the IEEE-GRSS Journals. The subscription costs
are funded by the Commission as a service to members. A number of members requested subscriptions and they are
receiving the requested journals for 2013/2014.
Development of Webinars
The proposal to develop RS&P webinars has not yet progressed. A questionnaire sent to members regarding suggested
Webinar topics resulted in a very limited response and an apparent lack of interest in attending webinars. The
Committee is proposing to use some existing web based webinars to test the interest of members.
Australian Earth Observation Community Coordination Group (AEOCCG)
The SSSI RS&P is a founding organisation of the (AEOCCG). It was established under the leadership of Professor Stuart
Phinn from the University of Queensland, Adam Lewis from GA and Alex Held from CSIRO, and some seed funding from
Geoscience Australia. The web site has been established at http://www.aeocg.org.au/
Communications
Regular columns and articles have been placed by the Commission representatives in GeoMessage and Position
Magazine.
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Asian Conference on Remote Sensing
Craig Smith represented the Commission at the Asian Association of Remote Sensing general conference in Bali,
Indonesia in October 2013. The Conference was very successful with 1 400 Conference delegates, 525 presented papers,
and 297 poster papers.
SSSI General Certification Panel
A representative of the Commission is a Member of the SSSI General Certification Panel. Panel members assess
applications for general certification. The assessment includes compliance with the educational and relevant work
experience requirements for general membership of the SSSI.

Craig Smith
Chair
RS&P Commission
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Engineering and Mining Surveying Commission Report
Bernard O’Sullivan, Chair
In the past year the Engineering and Mining Surveying Commission voted on its biennial
elections as per the requirements of the SSSI constitution. These elections were run with the
following results, and commission representatives;









 Queensland Representatives – Charles McGuire and Mark Allen
 New South Wales Representatives – Dave Richey and 1 vacant position
Australian Capital Territory – no representatives
Victoria – no representatives
Tasmania – no representatives
South Australia – no representatives
Western Australian Representatives – Tony Snow and Bernard O’Sullivan (Chair)
Northern Territory – no representatives
New Zealand – no representatives

In addition to the elections, that netted few national representatives, I was re-elected as Chair and decided to place some
casual representatives on the Commission to try filling the voids in parts of Australia. Not surprisingly the volunteers
were from the most active regions for the Engineering and Mining Surveying Commission (WA and QLD). These
representatives are:





Scott Pollard (WA)
Stephen Marevic (WA)
Patrick O’Connor (QLD)
Ray Watson (WA)

We want to thank those who have volunteered and ask that anyone who feels they can offer something, especially in the
vacant regions to contact us as every bit counts. Further to these elections the Commission has ongoing support from the
members of the ESP-AP Certification Panel. This Panel consists of Mark Allen – QLD (Panel Chair), Ray Watson – WA and
Max Milne – WA. At the end of this year Max Milne resigned from his position on the panel and was replace by Dave
Richey – NSW. I would like to personally thank Max for his hard work and years of dedication to the certification cause
and to the Institute. I would also like to thank Dave for volunteering some more of his time to assist in the panel
assessments. We are hoping to increase our Commission participation in the coming year and wish to increase the size of
the certification panel to keep up with certification numbers.
One of the focus points of the Commission is the progress and promotion of the ESP-AP (Engineering Surveying)
Certification. This year saw the expiry of the Long Term Practice or ‘Grandfather Clause’ (expired 30th June 2014) that
was available since the release of this certification in 2011. This does now mean the only method of achieving the
certification is via the education point system. This year we have continued to receive regular applications from
Engineering Surveyors for ESP-AP Certification, and have reached the milestone of 100 certified surveyors and kept going.
At the end of the year we had over 110, with more pending applications.
A highlight for this year was for the Commission to compile information and set up the ESP-AP renewal procedures
manual along with biennial renewal forms. Once the Commission finalised these documents it was presented to the
Consultative Council and then the Board for approval. This was released just before the end of financial year with
renewals coming in soon after.
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We have also noted a reenergised group in Queensland that are being involved in Engineering Surveying meetings and
Western Australia has continued to have regular Engineering Surveying Interest Group meetings with great attendance.
These meetings are a perfect place to start an involvement that can make a difference.
This coming year our Commission is planning to run engineering and mining CPD events in all regions and I’m hoping to
run workshops or presentations at the various regional conference events to further promote the ESP-AP certification.
We will be seeking endorsements from SIBA for our certification as other commissions have for their respective
certifications. The Commission will also be preparing and presenting a proposal for changes to the ESP-AP certifications
education requirements to fall into line with industry demands. Our project for the coming year that was included in our
budget proposal was a new SSSI web page for fast references to existing standards and requirements. This will likely be a
valuable tool for all members and non-members and will benefit all commissions and regions.
Thank you for a great year.

Bernard O’Sullivan
Chair
E&MS Commission
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Land Surveying Commission Report
Phillip Pozzi, Chair
Introduction
2014 has been an interesting year in the development of the Surveying and Spatial Sciences
Institute. The National Land Surveying Commission (NLSC) recognizes the ever changing
landscape that is surveying and the need to represent its core, the members.
The National Strategy and Service Agreement is still in the process of discussion and resolution,
the Land Surveying Commission has played an active part in discussions to date and continues
play and active role in the resolution, with the major aim for NLSC to receive administrative assistance to allow the Land
Surveying Commission to achieve its potential.
The NLSC Committee and members have continued to maintain an active role in SSSI and the Commission continues to
strive to act as the peak representative body at a National level.
Highlights and Achievements
The NLSC provided a response to Cadastre 2034 and looks forward to playing a continuing role in the development of the
policy and document.
The NLSC joined the Council of Reciprocating Surveyors Boards of Australia and New Zealand in lodging a submission
against the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Trade Mark application for the term Chartered Surveyor.
The NLSC’s assessment panel continues to assess overseas migration applications for surveyors on behalf of the Federal
Government’s Department of Education Employment and Workplace Relations.
Members of the Commission continue to represent Surveyors at various levels on FIG Council, FIG Commission and FIG
Working Groups. The role and position of SSSI as a whole in relation to FIG and where the Land Surveying Commission fits
in relation to this is still the subject of continued discussion.
NLSC members have represented the SSSI on the Property Law Reform Alliance and on the Standards Australia IT-036
Committee, as well as representation at the respective Regional Levels on numerous issues.
Major Events
As had been the case in the past and continues to be, the great majority of State and Territories regularly deliver
continuing surveying material by way of seminars, webinars mini conferences etc.
In addition to these, the SSSI Conference Locate 14 was held in Canberra from the 7th to the 9th April 2014.
The program included a Land Surveying stream that featured a number of varying subjects and speakers, generally based
around the theme of the Changing Landscape of Surveying.
With the ever increasing interaction between States and Territories, an Open Panel discussion with representatives from
the various States and Territories relating to GNSS, Survey Control Standards, Datums, Digital Cadastres and E plan
delivered in support of the Conference theme. Future events would benefit from a similar discussion that allowed more
time for the discussion and open panel.
Two of the NLSC members presented papers at the conference and a number were in attendance.
What to look forward to 2014/2015
As touched on in the introduction, the NLSC will only reach its full potential through administrative assistance being
provided to coordinate the efforts of the volunteer members and to ensure stated and targeted objectives are met.
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Furthermore the role of the NLSC in the space that represents surveyors needs to be fully understood and the operations
of similar organizations researched and understood. In a world where volunteer time is limited and member interest is
divided we need to consider collaboration where it is appropriate.
The NLSC will look to ensure currents MOU’s with various organizations are ratified where existing and entered into
where appropriate.
Similarly continued liaison between the various states in relation to the need for attracting students into the disciplines
of Land Surveying and having qualified, techniques and mentoring seeing graduates through to professional registration
needs to be continued. The best method of delivery for these services needs to be resolved and support given both in
kind and financial to this / these organizations.
The subject of Land Surveying Commission certification continues to be discussed, with the need for such certification, till
present, thought to be largely unwarranted due to the regional statutory and professional requirements. With the ever
increasing movements towards and availability of national standards and data formats, the benefit of a national
certification grows.
The Land Surveying Commission Committee and members have continued to maintain an active role in SSSI strategic
development by way of the consideration and development of policy into the future.
Conclusion and Thank You
The NLSC is in a somewhat unique position that its member services are best delivered at a regional level due to the
various Registration, Licensing and CPD requirements. Notwithstanding that, we are seeing a blurring of the jurisdictional
boundaries and with the ability to access data and provide information in all formats and in all areas, requirements for
commonality.
The NLSC needs to be in that space and providing the ability for members to learn how to and continue to, operate in the
evolving space.
As my term as Chair of the NLSC comes to an end I would like to thank all of the members of the committee that I had the
pleasure to work with.
As you would expect there is often a diversity of opinion amongst a group and the NLSC is no exception. What has bound
the committee is the common passion and pride in the profession of surveying and the desire to see the efforts and
achievements of those before us continue into the future.
I have benefitted from the individual and collective wisdom of the group and thank each and every member of the
committee past and present for all their efforts.

Phillip Pozzi
Chair
LSC
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Spatial Information and Cartography Commission Report
Jessica Davies, Chair
I have had the privilege of leading the Spatial Information and Cartography Commission since
early 2014. Penny Baldock, our past Chair, has been very patient while I finalized some work
commitments until I was able to take over the role more fully. Penny has done a fantastic job
identifying areas for the Commission to focus on and motivating us all to keep plugging away at
our designated activities, so thank you to Penny and all of those on the Committee who put in a
lot of time and effort for the benefit of our members. I hope I can continue in Penny’s footsteps adequately.
Over the 2013/2014 financial year, the Commission has:

















Prepared for QCON14: Allen Ibaugh, President of URISA will be visiting, presenting a keynote presentation at the
conference and facilitating the Business Intelligence and Data Integration workshop
Prepared for an SICC representative to attend URISA’s GIS-Pro14 conference: Our Vice Chair Alan Hobson was
chosen to represent the Commission and SSSI and to continue to work on the relationship that we have
established with URISA over the last couple of years
Seized an opportunity to send a representative to the Pacific Islands GIS and Remote Sensing User Conference:
Hanno Klan, SICC NSW Representative, will present a workshop at the conference, promote GISP-AP certification
and forge a relationship with our Oceanic neighbours
Developed the GISP-AP Action Plan: The GISP-AP Action Plan is the result of a detailed review of the current
GISP-AP application and administration processes, and specific challenges that have been identified by
applicants. It identifies a number of improvements to the application process, some of which we have already
implemented; we are aiming for the assessment process to be faster and for applicants to be kept more informed
throughout the process.
AURIN secured as a Sustaining Partner for the Commission: Under the partnership, SSSI and the Australian
Urban Research Infrastructure Network (AURIN) have delivered AURIN Masterclasses around Australia to
introduce attendees to the pioneering features of the AURIN portal and allow for hands on time to practice
multi-disciplinary collaborative spatial-decision making exercises.
Licensed a third URISA workshop – Business Intelligence and Data Integration: Based on the success of the GIS
Program Management Workshop and Cartography and Map Design workshops previously licensed from URISA
and run around Australia by SSSI trained facilitators, the Commission has licensed a third workshop on Business
Intelligence and Data Integration. We are looking forward to the first running of this workshop at QCON14 and
then rolling the workshop out around the country.
Recognised GISP-AP recipients: Administering GISP-AP certification is an important role for our Commission, and
recognizing those who meet the criteria are now formally recognised through GeoMessage, Position Magazine
and at most Regional awards evenings. The public register of certified professionals remains on the SSSI website.
Run our first webinar on the GISP-AP Application Process: Attempting a different form of CPD, the Certification
Panel Chair and I ran a webinar on the GISP-AP Application Process. We walked attendees through the
background to and benefits of GISP-AP certification, the application process and specifically what the assessors
are looking for in applications. We look forward to delivering more information via this medium in the years to
come.
Maintained our relationship with similarly aligned organisations: As noted above, we have continued our
relationship with URISA, have been working with MSIA to identify potential joint events and renewed Affiliate
membership with ICA.
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Accredited 10 new GISP-APs and renewed 6 existing GISP-APs (bringing our current number of certified
professionals to 49): We have suffered a decline in the number of certified professionals due to many of the
initial certificants not renewing their accreditation. Under the GISP-AP Action Plan we will be investigating why
certificants are not renewing to try to turn these figures around as well as lobbying employers to recognise
certification.
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Looking towards the next financial year, the Commission will be:






Training SSSI facilitators in the Business Intelligence and Data Integration workshop at QCON14
Holding an extended face to face Commission meeting at QCON14 capitalising on many of the Committee
members attending QCON14 to be trained as facilitators in the BI & DI workshop. The meeting will allow us to set
timeframes on the long term activities in the GISP-AP Action Plan, establish a plan for migration assessment and
share webinar tips and tricks to grow confidence amongst committee members to run webinars.
Working on positioning the Commission as the approving body for skilled migration assessments
Supporting Pivotal 2015, a world class two week intensive master class.

If you would like to join our Committee to help drive some of these initiatives, and help make our next year a success I
would be very interested to hear from you.

This SICC Report was prepared by current Chair Jessica Davies.
The SICC Chair for 2013-2014 was Penny Baldock.
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Hydrography Commission Report
Simon Ironside, Chair
I have had the privilege of Chairing the SSSI Hydrography Commission during the 2013/14 year and
am pleased to report that it has been another year of progress and achievement. The Commission
has continued to expand its influence within the Australasian hydrographic surveying community
and will continue to play a significant role within the industry in the coming years.
Hydrography Commission National Committee (HCNC)
I would like to record my appreciation of the work the members of the HCNC (and AHSCP – see below) have undertaken
again this year. We are all volunteers and members have undertaken a considerable amount of work on behalf of the
Commission, the Institute and the wider hydrographic community in Australia, New Zealand and internationally.
The 2013/15 HCNC comprises: Simon Ironside Chair (NZ), Michael Beard Vice-Chair (ACT/Qld), Jasbir Randhawa Treasurer
(NSW), Brett Brace AHSCP Chair, Richard Cullen CPD Co-coordinator (NSW) , Simon Allen (Tas), Peter Barr (NSW), Owen
Cantrill (Qld), Paul Downie (Vic), Neil Farrant (NZ), Paul Kennedy (WA), Daniel Kruimel (SA/NSW), Celine Roux (NSW),
Emily Tidey (NZ), Andrew Ternes (Vic)
Commission Work
As of 30 June 2014 the Hydrography Commission has 139 financial members throughout Australasia and internationally,
a slight decrease from the previous year’s number (145). The Commission also had another financially profitable year
with the balance carried over from the previous financial year, enabling work on our ongoing projects to continue. On
behalf of the Hydrography Commission I wish to express my gratitude to our Sustaining Partner, The Australian
Hydrographic Service for their invaluable assistance again this year.
2013/14 highlights include









The Hydrography Commission-produced Hydrography as a Career video was completed and widely circulated.
Feedback has been overwhelmingly positive with over 8,500 ‘hits’ on YouTube
(http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rFQ1IpkW81Y).
The Commission has been in discussions with staff at University of Otago’s School of Surveying (Dunedin NZ)
regarding the Australasian hydrographic surveying community’s concern to have at least one tertiary institution
providing hydrographic surveying qualifications to a Category A or equivalent level in the region. There is some
impetus within the University for the creation of a Masters in Hydrography (taught rather than research). The
current thinking is that the Category A syllabus is too restrictive and a broader MSc Hydrography programme
would be preferable to resurrecting the old Category A course. However, much planning is needed, given the
distance learning aspects involved. The earliest date that a course could be offered is 2016.
A Climate Change page has been added to the Hydrography Commission section of the SSSI website.
The Hydrography Commission commenced work on a video promoting the benefits of certification, targeting
people who have graduated but not yet become certified (both junior and senior surveyors). An application to
the Institute’s Vision Fund has been successful and RiAus, the production house who produced the Hydrography
as a Career video, has been engaged.
The Hydrography Commission held a successful one-day seminar in Hobart on 11 September 2013 (our first in
Tasmania) in conjunction with the Port Surveyors Working Group (PSWG) meeting. It was well attended (31
attendees of which 10 were Commission members) with a very good programme of presenters.
The SSSI, generally and the Hydrography Commission in particular, were well represented at the 2014 FIG
Congress, held in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia in June 2014. Peter Barr has agreed to Chair FIG Commission 4
(Hydrography) Working Group 4.1 - Standards and Guidelines for Hydrography for the work period 2015-18.
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Australasian Hydrographic Surveyors Certification Panel (AHSCP)
The AHSCP is a regional body charged with certifying hydrographic surveyor competence and is jointly sponsored by the
Surveying & Spatial Sciences Institute (SSSI) and the New Zealand Institute of Surveyors (NZIS). The AHSCP operates within
the Hydrography Commission and is one of the SSSI's four specialist certification bodies.
The 2013 -14 AHSCP comprises
Chair: Commodore Brett Brace RAN (Hydrographer of Australia), ex-officio
Members: Mr. Martin Castalanelli (Industrial Offshore Surveying), LCDR Richard Cullen RAN (Nautical Charting), Mr. Neil
Hewitt (Private Practice), Mr. Mark Sinclair (Education), Mr. Barry Smith (Surveys for Coastal Zone Management)
Meetings
The following meetings were held in the year 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014:
64th AHSCP Meeting held on 23 September 2013 (teleconference)
Joint HCNC-AHSCP Meeting held in Sydney on 3-4 February 2014 (face to face meeting).
65th AHSCP Meeting held on 29 April 2014 (teleconference)
In addition the Panel conducted a telephone interview (on 21 November 2013) with an applicant applying for Level 1
certification.
Certification Assessment
The Panel assessed a total of 13 applicants received from Australia (11) and Singapore (1) during the year. 12 individuals
were assessed, of which




3 were awarded Level 1 status
5 were awarded Level 2
4 applications were deferred with the applicants required to furnish additional information.

Skills Assessment
The SSSI has obtained approval for the AHSCP to assess overseas qualifications of hydrographic surveyors applying for
migration to Australia under the occupation of Surveyor ANZSCO 232212. The SSSI document pertaining to this has been
revised and can be downloaded from: http://sssi.org.au/userfiles/docs/SSSI%20Policy/documents_1406767113.pdf
BOSSI Recognition
In December 2013 the NSW Board of Surveying and Spatial Information (BOSSI) resolved to recognise the SSSI Certification
Programme. BOSSI will now detail information, for the benefit of the public, about certified surveying and spatial
professionals (commencing with certified hydrographic surveyors). Conceptually, BOSSI will link to the SSSI website for this
information – ‘Find a Certified Hydrographic Surveyor’ page.
IBSC Reporting
In 2012 the FIG-IHO-ICA International Board on Standards of Competence for Hydrographic Surveyors and Nautical
Cartographers (IBSC) recognized the AHSCP Certification Scheme as a regional scheme for individual recognition, the only
such scheme to be recognised world-wide. Recognition is valid for 6 years, and re-recognition is subject to a successful
application submitted at the end of the period.
The IBSC also requires an annual report summarizing the Scheme, events of significance, a list of the applicants, etc. The
AHSCP submitted its 2013 Report to the 37th IBSC Meeting held in Tokyo, Japan during 11-17 April 2014.
Simon Ironside
Hydrography Commission Chair
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year term and the Panel is currently comprised of
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Special Interest Groups
Young Professionals Report
Danielle Beaudreau, Chair
The Young Professionals is a special interest group that represents students and people aged 35
years and younger. The YPs encompass members from all Commissions and Regions. The
national YP committee is made up of a young professional representative from each region. The
2013/2014 committee consisted of Lara Rector (Tas), Nicholas Flett (WA), Holly Voller (VIC), Matt
Fry (QLD), Joel Dillon (SA) and Adrian White (NSW).

This year has been a slow year for the National YP committee but we have seen some webinars, in particular a webinar
where one of our SSSI YP Patrons Helen Owens (Office of Spatial Policy) gave the YPs career advice. A new part-time
student membership has been introduced which encourage those studying part to become members and benefit from
the networks SSSI has.
The YPs have been active in their local regions with many helping out with regional conferences and putting on local
events encouraging YPs to get involved.
I would like to thank this past year’s committee for all the effort and commitment they have put in.

Danielle Beaudreau
Chair
YP
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2013 APSEA Individual Awards

The annual Asia-Pacific Spatial Excellence Awards are unique. These are the only awards for the Asia-Pacific region
that recognise, at the same event, the excellent achievements of both individuals and organisations engaged in the
spatial information industry across the region.
2013 APSEA Individual Awards
The 2013 APSEA awards dinner was held on Tuesday evening, April 8 2014 at Parliament House in Canberra.
Congratulations to those individual Awards recipients:







Professional of the Year – LINDA MORGAN
Young Professional of the Year – NATHAN EATON
Education and Professional Development Award – GLENN CAMPBELL
Student - Undergraduate – JAKE BUSWELL
Student - Postgraduate – XIN LUI
SSSI 2013 President’s Award – HELEN OWENS
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Titanium Partner

Esri Australia Report
Brett Bundock, Managing Director
For Esri Australia, our ongoing partnership with SSSI affords us the opportunity to
continue to drive the spatial sector forward, taking with us a membership base that
provides the foundation for the industry's success.
The past year has seen us consolidate our relationship with SSSI, working together to:
provide support to organisations around the country already using Geographic
Information System (GIS) technology; and, raise the profile and understanding of
spatial technology in emerging sectors, such as agribusiness, retail and engineering.
A major focus of our joint initiatives has been exploring how best to deliver value
back to existing members of the SSSI family.
Together with SSSI, we’ve hosted 15 state-based events aimed at providing increased local support to GIS professionals,
both in capital cities and regional centres.
These events have provided an opportunity for us to: share the expertise of our technical specialists and certified
trainers; deliver presentations that highlight innovative applications of GIS; and, run demonstrations showcasing the
latest advances in the technology.
Importantly, the past year has also seen a renewed focus on furthering spatial education and training.
Each year, SSSI support the Esri Young Scholar Award – which celebrates excellence in geospatial study and, more
specifically, the creative use of GIS technology to solve commercial and community issues.
This year, SSSI President John Trinder joined me on the judging panel, alongside Secretary for the Department of
Communications Drew Clarke; and, Principal GIS Strategist for Western Power – 2013 winners of the Esri Special
Achievement in GIS Award – David Klein.
We received the highest number of entries in the event’s history – showing the demand for geospatial disciplines within
Australian universities is growing.
The 2014 winner – Curtin University student Grace Lin – was awarded for a project which maps the accessibility of Perth
railway stations for older transit passengers.
It is our intention that through the Esri Young Scholar Award and other initiatives, such as SSSI’s Young Professionals, we
can continue to nurture the next generation of GIS professionals – a fundamental pillar of our continued partnership.

Brett Bundock, Managing Director, Esri Australia
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Gold Partner

CR Kennedy Report
Bernie Edmonds, National Business Development Manager
The year is 1934. King George V is on the throne, Europe is in turmoil, Donald Bradman is hitting his heights. And in
Australia, Clement Robert Kennedy goes into business importing optical equipment from around the world.
Fast forward to today and 2013/14 has seen C.R. Kennedy celebrate its 80th year. Still an independently owned family
company, it is a prominent force in the survey industry, and proudly the exclusive Australian distributors for Leica
Geosystems survey equipment and solutions.
The company has succeeded through building brands and bonds, both with its customers and suppliers. In fact, the
bond with Pentax goes back to the 1950's and today C.R.Kennedy is the first and oldest distributor of Pentax in the
world.
In the 1960's the company was well known as the distributor of survey products such as Pentax and Geodimeter and
began building lasting relationships within Australia's surveying industry. This lead to C.R. Kennedy's appointment in
2001 as sole and exclusive distributor in Australia for Leica Geosystems (now a Hexagon company).
Through outstanding customer service, the company quickly grew to become one of the world's leading Leica
distributors. During this period we have also been proud to successfully represent many of the world’s other leading
manufacturers of geospatial hardware and software including Riegl, Optech, Aibotix, UAVER MicroSurvey, Myzox,
Pentax and many more.
One of the significant developments in the last 12 months has seen the emergence of the age of the unmanned aerial
vehicle (UAV), and CR Kennedy has been at the forefront. As a result of our relationship with Aibotix and UAVER we can
offer your business a smooth entry into this exciting new industry.
C.R. Kennedy now employs over 100 people in its Survey Division. All our product specialists and qualified surveyors can
advise on the best solutions and provide you with the very best equipment for your needs. You will have support and
service from an unmatched national service network, along with tailored training opportunities at C.R. Kennedy offices
or on site.
Our commitment to supporting the wider geospatial industry continues to remain unrivalled. In June 2014 we further
reinforced our commitment to our customers by hosting an extensive group of over 70 surveyors and geo spatial
professionals to the HxGN Live conference in Las Vegas.
By supporting the SSSI, this type of commitment and dedication to the geo spatial industry is exactly what we hope to
continue well into the future.
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Sustaining Partners Report

Digital Globe – Gold Sustaining Partner

DigitalGlobe is a leading provider of commercial high-resolution earth
observation and advanced geospatial solutions that help decision
makers better understand our changing planet in order to save lives,
resources and time. Sourced from the world’s leading constellation, our
imagery solutions deliver unmatched coverage and capacity to meet our
customers’ most demanding mission requirements. Each day customers
in defense and intelligence, public safety, civil agencies, map making and
analysis, environmental monitoring, oil and gas exploration,
infrastructure management, navigation technology, and providers of location-based services depend on DigitalGlobe
data, information, technology and expertise to gain actionable insight. DigitalGlobe is a public company listed on the
NYSE as DGI, and is headquartered in Longmont, Colorado.
In January 2013, DigitalGlobe and GeoEye combined to become one DigitalGlobe, creating a company capable of
providing greater value to customers through an integrated constellation and a broader set of products and services. For
more information on the combination and its benefits, visit www.digitalglobe.com/combination.
DigitalGlobe is a registered trademark of DigitalGlobe.
Position Magazine and SpatialSource.com.au – Gold Sustaining Partner
Position Magazine and SpatialSource.com.au are proud to be partnering with the
Surveying & Spatial Sciences Institute in building the professionalism and technical
knowledge base of the industry.
Delivered as a benefit of membership to all members of the SSSI, Position magazine
has been informing and educating its readers in the surveying, spatial sciences, GIS,
and government for over ten years, the only magazine of its kind in Australia and New
Zealand.
In 2010, Position magazine was joined by its authoritative electronic news counterpart SpatialSource.com.au, a website
and weekly, free e-newsletter. Spatial Source also offers a premium tender service available by subscription.

Spatial Jobs Online – Bronze Sustaining Partner
Spatial Jobs Online is an online jobs notice board dedicated to the spatial industry. The
site allows industry employers to advertise their vacancies and for industry
professionals to apply for these vacancies.
As part of the sustaining partnership with SSSI, Spatial Jobs will be launching a range of
new services for employers and job seekers. With all these services SSSI Members and
Sustaining Partners will be eligible for a 25% discount.
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DIGO – Bronze Sustaining Partner
DIGO was established under a Cabinet Directive on 8 November 2000 in order to
provide geospatial intelligence, from imagery and other sources, in support of
Australia's defence and national interests. DIGO is the lead geospatial and imagery
intelligence organisation in the Department of Defence. DIGO performs a range of
functions, as described in the Intelligence Services Act 2001 (ISA).

Position Partners – Bronze Sustaining Partner
Wherever you find surveyors, engineers, construction machine operators and
contractors, Position Partners is there to assist their work to be precise, efficient and
in control.
Position Partners is Topcon's exclusive Australian partner for machine control and
positioning systems and the largest Topcon distributor in the world.
Acting local keeps us focused on individual requirements to provide customised solutions. Thinking national permits
wider initiatives and wiser investment in new innovations. As an example, a custom-built solution to track construction
machinery using satellite communications in remote areas of Western Australia, is now being deployed nationally.

Photomapping – Bronze Sustaining Partner
Photomapping are the spatial information specialists. Experts in a broad range of
geospatial disciplines, our experienced teams of professionals provide cost
effective, tailored solutions of the highest quality for any project.
Our company is involved in all aspects of acquisition, production, presentation and
the management of geospatial data and can provide services to any client, large or
small. Our range of cutting edge remote sensing technologies, modern twin-engine aircraft and dedicated flight crews
can respond to aerial LiDAR and Digital Photography requests throughout Australia, Asia and the Pacific region.

Pitney Bowes – Bronze Sustaining Partner
Pitney Bowes offers solutions that enable businesses and governments to
make well-informed and highly-effective decisions that lead to a better
customer experience. The company achieves this through a combination of
technology, deep industry experience and a culture focused on delivering
fast, measurable and meaningful client outcomes.
Pitney Bowes provides Location Intelligence, which enables clients to interpret, manage and act upon the complex and
unique relationships between organisational data and location, in order to deliver operational efficiencies, sound
governance and competitive advantage.
Pitney Bowes also offers Customer Engagement Management tools that drive organisational efficiencies and enable
businesses and governments to engage with their stakeholders on a personal level, elevating their experience.
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TAFE Riverina Institute – Education Sustaining Partner
This is the first year that Riverina Institute TAFE has been involved as a sustaining
partner of SSSI. As one of Australia’s foremost providers of spatial training via
distance-education, we have very much benefitted from the exposure that SSSI has
provided us.
We deliver training that utilises esri, MapInfo and QGIS software. We offer
Statement of Attainments in short courses and nationally accredited qualifications
in Certificate III, IV and Diploma’s of spatial information. We have students across
Australia and internationally, and can offer training to meet any organisation’s or
individual’s needs. Our teachers have strong industry experience, having working for Federal and State Government
agencies in disciplines of emergency management, cultural heritage, research and development and natural resource
management. They bring enthusiasm to their teaching underpinned by a wealth of knowledge on how spatial can be
applied to all industry sectors.
We are currently moving all our resources truly on-line, which will provide our students with an innovative and engaging
learning environment. From 2015 we are developing surveying qualifications for Certificate IV and Diploma. We hope
that this will meet some of the demand of industry. We look forward to a continued relationship with SSSI into 2015 and
beyond.

CPSISC – Sustaining Partner
CPSISC represents the workforce training and skills development needs of the
construction and property services industries.
More than 1.8 million Australians work in over 526,000 enterprises within the sector.
Together these workers and companies contribute greatly to Australia's infrastructure by
underpinning the nation's economic and social fabric. CPSISC is committed to encouraging recruitment to meet current
skill shortages and the future demand for a skilled workforce.
We are the official skills development voice of the construction and property services industries in Australia. We develop,
manage and distribute nationally recognised Training Packages and associated training and assessment materials.

EFM Health Clubs – Sustaining Partner
EFM Health Clubs provides a unique service between a regular gym and a personal trainer.
Clients have their very own fitness coach present every session to take them through a
different session every day. The sessions are personalized to each member to make sure that
they are getting the most out of their time in the club and the best results that they possibly
can. We pride ourselves on never locking members into lengthy contracts as our memberships are only on a month
to month basis. EFM is proud to have a partnership with the SSSI and provides all members with a 15% discount at
any one of our health clubs Australia wide. We look forward to working with the SSSI for many years to come.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
Your directors present their report on the financial report of the Institute for the year ended 30 June 2014.
Directors
The following persons are Directors of the Institute at the date of this report:
John Trinder
Jonathan Saxon
Gypsy Bhalla
Bernie O'Sullivan
Danielle Beaudreau
Chris McAlister
Gaby van Wyk

President
Treasurer
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

All directors are participants in the spatial industry in Australia.
During the financial year ended 30 June 2014, nine meetings of Directors were held. Set out below are details of each person that was
a director during the financial period, the number of meetings attended by each directors and number of meetings each director was
eligible to attend.

Director during the year ended 30 June 2014
John Trinder
Gypsy Bhalla
Jonathan Saxon
Danielle Beaudreau
Bernie O'Sullivan
Chris McAlister

President
Director
Treasurer
Director
Director
Director

Eligible
to Attend
9
9
9
6
6
9

Directors Report
Directors below retired during the financial year:
Gary Maguire
Simon Callaghan
Simon Ironside
Chris Pettit

Past President
Director
Director
Director

6
3
3
3

Attendance
9
5
7
5
6
9

5
1
2
3

Activities
The principal activity of the Institute during the year ended 30 June 2014 was to provide the membership framework for surveying and
spatial professionals to practise and thereby serve the needs of the surveying and spatial community.

Results & Review of Operations
The net result of operations of the Institute or the year ended 30 June 2014 was an operating Loss of $66,862
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Dividends
The Institute is a public company limited by guarantee and is prohibited by its objects from distributing its surplus to the members.
Accordingly, no dividend has been paid out or declared for year ended 30 June 2014 by the Institute.

Directors' Benefits
No directors has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Institute or a related corporation
with the director or with a firm of which he/she is a member, or with a company in which he/she has a substantial financial interest.

Indemnification of Officers and Directors
The Institute has not, during or since the close of the financial year, in respect of any person who is or has been an officer or auditor
of the Institute or related corporate entity:
(i) Indemnified or made any relevant agreement for indemnifying against a liability incurred as an officer or auditor including costs
and expenses in successfully defending legal proceedings; or
(ii)Paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract insuring against a liability incurred as an officer or auditor for the costs or
expenses to defend legal proceedings.

Signed at the 25th day of September, 2014
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

________________________________
Director

________________________________
Director

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
The directors declare that:
1. the financial statements and notes required by accounting standards comply with accounting standards and the Corporations Act
2001;
2. the financial statements and notes gives a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2014 and performance of the
Institute for year ended on that date; and
3. in the opinion of the directors, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Institute will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due and payable.

Signed at the 25th day of September, 2014
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

________________________________
Director

________________________________
Director
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Financial Statements

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 June 2014
Note

2014
$

2013
$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

4
5
6

1,124,415
224,435
99,867
1,448,718

1,225,820
223,869
110,100
1,559,789

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Plant and equipment
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS

7

665,240
665,240

649,381
649,381

2,113,958

2,209,169

75,359
452,756
5,153
533,267

128,311
458,981
10,262
597,554

40,373
40,373

6,811
6,811

573,641

604,365

NET ASSETS

1,540,317

1,604,805

EQUITY
Retained surplus
Initial Contribution
TOTAL EQUITY

1,537,943
2,374
1,540,317

1,590,643
14,162
1,604,805

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Current tax payable
Provisions
Unearned revenue
Money held in trust
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liability
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

8
9
11
12

10

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2014
Note
Revenue from ordinary activities
Staffing costs
Occupancy costs
Events and administrative costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities
LOSS FOR THE YEAR

2

2014
$
1,749,105
(877,319)
(545,091)
(370,445)
(23,112)
(66,862)

2013
$
2,323,155
(904,276)
(498,065)
(747,599)
(31,869)
141,346

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2014
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from members and customers
Payments to suppliers and employees

1,724,066
(1,802,011)

2,339,285
(2,162,925)

13,138
(64,808)

14,679
191,039

(38,971)
(38,971)

(1,494)
(1,494)

2,374

14,162

(101,405)
1,226,441
(621 )
1,124,415

203,707
1,022,734
1,226,441

Net surplus for the year

Retained
Earnings
(66,862)

Total
Equity
141,346

Initial Contribution
Retained Earnings at beginning of year

2,374
1,604,805

14,162
1,449,297

1,540,317

1,604,805

Interest received
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

18(b)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Initial Contribution
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Adjustment to prior year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

18(a)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Balance at 30 June 2014

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2014
Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
standards, Urgent Issues Group Interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board and the Corporations Act 2001.

The financial report covers the Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited as an individual entity. Surveying and Spatial
Science Institute Limited is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The financial reports
incorporates the income, expenses, assets and liabilities of State and Territory regions which are not separately incorporated.

The financial report of the Company complies with all Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(AIFRS) in their entirety. The company is a not-for-profit entity for the purposes of measurement and disclosure under AIFRS.
The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs.
(a)

Income Tax
The institute is a not for profit organization and is currently in the process of gaining income tax exemption. Therefore no
income tax applied to the account

(b)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the Company to ensure it is not in excess of
the remaining service potential of these assets.

Property, plant and equipment purchases with a cost of less than $500 are expensed in the period of purchase.
All classes of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method.
Depreciation is charged at the following rates:
Class of fixed assets
Furniture, plant and equipment
(c)

Rates
10% - 40%

Financial Instruments
Recognition
Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when the related
contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as set out below.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2014
Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments
These investments have fixed maturities, and it is the company’s intention to hold these investments to maturity. Any held-to-maturity
investments held by the company are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal payments and amortisation.
(d)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks or financial institutions.

(e)

Employee Benefits

Provision is made for the company’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance date.
Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is
settled, plus related on costs. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made for those benefits.
Contributions are made by the company to employees’ superannuation funds and are charged as expenses when incurred.
(f)

Leases

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership,
are transferred to the company, are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised recording an asset and a liability equal to the
present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction
of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.
(g)

Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in this financial report.

(h)

Revenue and expense recognition

The Institute's membership subscription year runs from 1 July to 30 June. Only the membership fees and subscription receipts which are
attributable to the current financial year are recognised as revenue.
Operational grants are recognised as revenue progressively over the period of the grant. Operational grants received in respect of future
financial years are recognised as income received in advance (liabilities, unearned revenue).
Project grants are recognised as revenue to the extent that the monies have been applied in accordance with the conditions of the grant. Project
grants received prior to the year end but unexpended as at that date are recognised as unexpended project grants (liabilities, unearned revenue).
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2014
Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Conference and seminar income is recognised as revenue on completion of the event. Income received prior to the holding of
the event is recognised as income received in advance (liabilities, unearned income). Expenses incurred prior to the event are
recognised as deferred costs (other current assets). Where a professional conference organisers ("PCO") is used, only the net
income/expense is recognised in the income statement. Advances of seed money paid to PCO's and the balance of any surplus receivable
for completed events is recognised as amounts receivable for events (receivables).
Publications sales are recognised upon delivery of goods to the customer.
Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customer.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

(i)

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher
of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. As a not-for-profit entity, value in
use for the company, according to AASB 136 Impairment of Assets, is depreciated replacement cost. Any excess of the asset's carrying
value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the income statement.

(j)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report based on historical knowledge and best
available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic
data, obtained both externally and within the Company.

Key estimates - Impairment

The Company assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that may lead to
impairment of assets. Should an impairment indicator exist, the determination of the recoverable amount of the asset may require
incorporation of a number of key estimates. No impairment indicators were present at 30 June 2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2014

2014
$

2013
$

Note 2: Revenue
(a) Revenues
Operating activities:
Membership Fees
Sustaining Partner Income
Conference & other seminar fees
Certification & Qualification assessment
Publication sales
Management Fees
Interest
Other
Total Revenue

Note 3: Income tax expense
Prima facie income tax payable/(benefit) on surplus from
ordinary activities before income tax at 30%
Add (Subtract) tax effect of:
Members expenses not deductible
Members income not assessable
Tax losses not recognised (recouped)
Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities
Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and at bank
Cash on hand
Undeposited Funds

Note 5: Receivables
CURRENT
Trade debtors
Other receivables

754,478
198,338
623,745
55,964
19,932
33,637
13,138
49,874
1,749,105

765,049
177,912
1,190,016
55,756
28,464
42,362
14,679
48,917
2,323,155

-

-

-

1,123,715
700
1,124,415

1,211,125
700
13,995
1,225,820

224,435

223,869

224,435

223,869
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2014

2014
$
Note 6: Other current assets
Prepayments and deferred events costs

Note 7: Property, plant and equipment
Property, Furniture, plant and equipment – at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Movement in the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment between the beginning and the
end of the current financial year

2013
$

99,867

761,692
(96,453)
665,240

110,100

761,423
(112,042)
649,381

Furniture, plant &
equipment

Opening Balance
Additions
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Closing Balance

Note 8: Payables
CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities:
Creditors and accrued expenses
Other Payables

Note 9: Current tax assets and liabilities
CURRENT
Current tax payable

Note 10: Lease liability
CURRENT
Lease liability

-

649,381
38,971
(23,112)
665,240

679,756
1,494
(31,869)
649,381

70,399
4,960
75,359

127,504
807
128,311

-

-

40,373
40,373

6,811
6,811
-
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2014
$
Note 11: Unearned revenue
CURRENT
Members fees in advance
Sustaining Partner Income in Advance
Conference income received in advance
Sponsorship Credit
Surcharge

2013
$

219,255
141,703
65,603
26,195

182,191
209,590
43,000
24,200

452,756

458,981

5,143
10
5,153

2,652
7,917
(308)
10,262

Note 13: Employee information
The aggregate employee benefit liability recognised and included in the
financial report is as follows:
CURRENT
Payables (Note 8)

5,269

5,726

Aggregate employee benefit liability

5,269

5,726

15

14

Note 12: Money held in trust
TAS Project Holding Account
Other Project Holding Account
Holding

Number of employees at year end

Note 14: Company details
(a) Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited represents members in the field of spatial information in Australia.
(b) The registered office and the principal place of business of the institute is 1st Floor, National Surveyors House, 27-29 Napier
Close, Deakin ACT 2600
(c) The Institute is a company limited by guarantee (ACN 135 572 815)
On the winding up of the Institute each member is required to contribute up to $20.00 per member to meet any outstanding liabilities
of the Institute.
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Note 15: Key management personnel
(a) Details of Key Management Personnel
Names and positions held of key management personnel in office at any time during the financial year are:
(i) Directors of Spatial Sciences Institute Limited
John Trinder
Gypsy Bhalla
Jonathan Saxon
Danielle Beaudreau
Jim Curnow
Bernie O'Sullivan
Chris McAlister
Gary Maguire
Simon Callaghan
Simon Ironside
Chris Pettit

President
Director
Treasurer
Director
Director
Director
Director
Ceased
Ceased
Ceased
Ceased

(ii) Executives
Roger Buckley
James Curnow

Chief Executive Officer / Secretary
Secretary

(b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel

2014
Total compensation

Short-term
benefits

Post employment
benefits

Total

$

$

$

-

-

The directors did not receive any remuneration directly or indirectly from the Company or any related body
corporate for management of the Company, other than reimbursements of expenses incurred on behalf of the
Company.
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30 June 2014
Note 15: Related Parties
No related parties applied
2014
$
Note 16: Auditors' remuneration
Remuneration of the auditor for:
Auditing the financial report
Other services

2013
$

6,000
6,000

6,000
6,000

Note 17: Leasing commitments
Not Applicable
Note 18: Cash flow information
(a) Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is represented by the following items:
Cash assets
1,124,415
(b) Reconciliation of net cash relating to operating activities to net surplus
Net surplus
Non-cash flows in operating surplus:
Depreciation and amortisation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Other current assets
Payables
Employee benefits provisions
Unearned revenue
Current tax payable
Money held in trust
Net cash relating to operating activities

1,225,820

(66,862)

141,346

23,112

31,869

(224,435)

(223,869)

(99,867)
75,359

(110,100)
128,311

452,756

458,981

5,153
165,215

10,262
436,800
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Note 18: Cash flow information (continued)
(c) Restricted Cash
There is no restricted Cash
Note 19: Subsequent Events
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly effects the operations of the Company.
Note 20: Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
Cash and
Cash
Equivalents
Non-Interest Bearing
Fixed Interest Maturing - 1 Year or less
Fixed Interest Maturing - 1 to 2 Years
Fixed Interest Maturing - 2 to 5 Years
Fixed Interest Maturing - More than 5 Years
Floating Interest

1,124,415
1,124,415

Financial Liabilities

Trade & Other
receivables

Trade & Other
Payables

224,435
224,435

75,359
75,359

Income in
Advance
452,756
452,756

(a) Financial Risk Management
The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise cash at bank, receivables and accounts payable.
The Company does not have any derivative instruments at 30 June 2014. It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the
Company’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are interest rate risk and credit risk. The policies for managing each
of these risks are summarised below.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or liability will change due to interest rate fluctuations. No financial
assets or liabilities were subject to interest rate risk with the exception of variable rate at call cash deposits.
Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount as disclosed in the balance
sheet and notes to the financial statements.
(b) Net Fair Values
The net fair value of financial assets and liabilities approximates the values shown in the statement of balance sheet and the notes
thereto.
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Auditor’s Report
Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited
Auditor's Independence Declaration

UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2014 there has been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation
to the Audit; and
(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit

John Beard, Registered Company Auditor 15775
Dated this fifteenth day of September 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SURVEYING AND SPATIAL SCIENCES
INSTITUTE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Report
I have audited the accompanying financial report of Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited (the company),
which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of profit or loss, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’
declaration.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations Act 2001 and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that I comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to
audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the company’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial report.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Independence
In conducting my audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. I confirm
that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors of
Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this
auditor’s report.
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Opinion
In my opinion, the financial report of Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i)
giving a true and fair view of the company’s financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its performance for the year
ended on that date; and
(ii)
complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations Regulations
2001.

John Beard
Address: 22 Hensman Street, Latham, ACT, 2615
Dated this fifteenth day of September 2014
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